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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

In Re: :
PATRICIA L. STARR,
Debtor :
--------------- : Chapter 13
: No. 09-41903-JBR
PATRICIA L. STARR, :
Plaintiff,

vs. :
: Adv. Pro.
BANK OF AMERICA CORPORATION : No. 09-04122-JBR
ASSIGNEE AND/OR SUCCESSOR IN
INTEREST TO COUNTRYWIDE HOME
LOANS, INC., COUNTRYWIDE HOME :
LOANS, INC., and BANK OF NEW
YORK MELLON, :
Defendants.

DEPOSITION OF THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON,
through its designee RENEE D. HERTZLER, aywitness
called on behalf of Patricia L. Starr, taken
pursuant to Rule 30(b)(6) of the Eéderal Rules of
Civil Procedure, before Jane M. Williamson,
Registered Merit Reporter and N6tary Public in and
for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, at the
Offices of Doris O. WongfAssociates, Inc., 50
Franklin Street, Boston{ Massachusetts, on Friday,
February 19, 2040, commencing at 2:08 p.m.

PRESENT:
Nickless;*Rhillips and O'Connor, P.C.
(byNames L. O'Connor, Jr., Esq.)
625 Main Street, Fitchburg, MA 01420,
for the Plaintiff Patricia L. Starr.

(Continued on next page)



PRESENT: (Continued)

Goodwin Procter LLP
(by Catalina E. Azuero, Esq.)
Exchange Place, Boston, MA 02109, for
the Defendants.

* kK kK 0



1 INDEX
2

WITNESS DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS
3

4 RENEE D. HERTZLER

5 BY MR. O'CONNOR 4 60 O
: @)

BY MS. AZUERO 54
7

| S

9 &' 2 ,.
%k ok ok ok
10
EXHIBITS
: S
NO. DESCRIPTION PAGE

12 K
1 Notice of Deposition of Bank of New 9 0
13 York Mellon 6
14 2 Proof of Claim 10 \O
15 2A  Power of Attorney 11 0
16 2B Document entitled "Corporate @
Resolution"
17
3 Document entitled "Interest Only
18 Adjustable Rate Note"
19 4  Affidavit of Renee Herd @ 35
20 5 Document entitl to 44
Debtor's Obj % Proof of
21 Claim of{Ba York"
22

23 * %k %

24



11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

PROCEEDINGS

RENEE D. HERTZLER
a witness called for examination by counsel for
Patricia L. Starr, having been satisfactorily
identified by the production of her driver's license
and being first duly sworn by the Notary Public, was
examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. O'CONNOR:
Q. Good afternoon, ma'am. Could you please
state your name and your business address.

A. Renee Hertzler, 7105 Corporate Drive,

Plano, Texas. 6

Q. And who is your employer, ma'am? \O
A. Bank of America. ‘ ,
Q. Bank of America. Is that the complew(@

of your employer? Q
A. Twork in the home loan ieing -- Bank



1 Q. And Bank of America Home Loan Servicing, is
2 that the complete name of your employer?

3 A Yes.

4 Q. My name is Jim O'Connor, and I represent

5 Patricia Starr, who is the debtor in this Chapter 13

6 bankruptcy, as well as the plaintiff in the

7 adversary proceeding.

8 I'm going to take your deposition today. 0
9 IfTask you a question, I'm going to ask you to
10 respond verbally. If you want the question Q

—_

11 repeated, we can repeat the question for you.
12 If at any time you want to take a break, 0&
13 just ask to take a break. As long as there's no 6
14 question pending, we'll be happy to accommodate. \O
O

15 As far as stipulations are concerned, we're

16 going to waive -- reserve all objections until t] @
17 time of trial? O{

18 MS. AZUERO: That's fi

19 MR. O'CONNOR: Angd ou want to have an
20 opportunity to have cad the transcript?

21 MS. AZ & We're waiving all

22 except for @bjections to form, right?
*
23 ONNOR: Correct. And you'll make

24 ents with the reporter to get a transcript?



1 MS. AZUERO: I will. Since we're putting

2 her forward as the 30(b)(6) for Bank of New York for
3 specific topics and for Bank of America for specific

4 topics, I just want to be clear when you're asking

5 her questions, however you want to do it, but I want

6 to know -- or she needs to know if she's answering

7 personally or as the representative for Bank of New

8 York or as the representative for Bank of America.

9 MR. O'CONNOR: We'll address that when we

10 come to it. Q

11 BY MR. O'CONNOR:

12 Q. Sois there anything that you want me to 0&
13 clarify at this time? 6

14 A. Idon't think so. O

15 Q. Ifyou could briefly just summarize your 0\

16 educational background. @

17 A. I'ma high school graduate. &

18 Q. And any education beyorid,hi sﬁQ’

19 A, Minimal college. Idi te.

20 Q. Whatyear a from high

21 school?
22 A. 1985.
*
23 old are you, ma'am?

24 N42.



1 Q. Areyou taking any medications today or is
2 there any condition that would cause you difficulty
3 in answering questions?

4 A, I'mtaking antibiotics, but I would not

5 have any difficulty answering questions.

6 Q. Then you're physically prepared to go

7 forward with the deposition?

8 A Yes. 0
9 Q. Have you ever testified at a deposition &
10 before? Q

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. How many times? 0&

13 A. One. 6

14 Q. Where was that? O

15 A. Dallas, Texas. 0\
Q. And when was that? @

17 A. The deposition was in I believe J@\

18 '09.

20 employment? Wer ’ ¢
21 employer or was i stonal matter?
22 A. Itwas for oyment.

*

23 s it on behalf of Bank of America
24 oan Servicing?

16




1 A. Countrywide Home Loans.

2 Q. Countrywide, all right.

3 Are you also employed by Countrywide?

4 A No.

5 Q. And why was it in July of '09 you were

6 testifying on behalf of Countrywide?

7  A. Itwasa lawsuit from the time I worked for
8 Countrywide.

9 Q. Have you testified in court before?

10 A, Yes.

11 Q. How many times?

12 A. Once.

13 Q. When was that?

14 A, Julyof'09. O
15 Q. And was that the same proceeding? 0\

16 A, Yes. @

"o A

. The Countrywide matter.
18 We're going to start with t] Qw
19 York Mellon 30(b)(6) depo
20 MS. AZUERQ: nt'te be clear that

%I\m
21 she won't be téstifying as®o Topics 3 or 5.

22 MR. O'CO R: Do you want to mark this as
*

23 the t.

24
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Q.

(Document marked as
Exhibit 1 for identification)

If you could just take a moment and take a

look at the document that's been marked as Exhibit

1.

Fo B O S

A.

Q.

of Bank of New York Mellon concerning the topics set\o

Okay. (Witness reviews document) Okay.

Have you seen that document before?

No. 0
This is the first time you've seen it?
Yes. Q

. You've had an opportunity to read it?

Yes. 0&
Do you consent to testify today on behalf

forth on that notice, other than as your counselor 0

Q.

preparation of your testimonQ

A.

Q.

A.

has indicated Topics No. 3 and 5? @

A.

Yes. 9
Did you speak with anyohe today

Yes. O

Who did y: &vith?

My attorn
4

0 is that?

atalina Azuero.
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1 Q. And other than your attorney, did you speak
2 with anyone else?

3 A No.

4 Q. When did you first learn that you'd be

5 testifying at this deposition?

6  A. Roughly, I want to say, sometime in

7 November.

8 Q. Have you looked at any documents in

9 preparation for your testimony today?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. What documents did you look at?

12 A. Ilooked at assignments, an affidavit,

13 mortgage note, Proof of Claim.

14 Q. And when did you look at those documents?
15 A. Tlooked at them today.

16 Q. Was that the first time you looked at t

17 A. Ibriefly looked at them when I ori

18 received them, which was prob und the time

19 that I found out about this.

20 MR. O'COr at as No. 2.

21 (Documy arked as
22 ibit 2*for identification)
L 2
23 ument that's been handed to you

24 as No. 2, is that the Proof of Claim in this
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case?

A. Yes,itis.

Q. Now, if you look at the first page, fourth
column down, where it states the name of creditor,

do you see that?

A. Yes.
Q. Is that the party on whose behalf you're
testifying today?
A. Yes.
Q. And are you testifying on behalf of that
party pursuant to a Power of Attorney?
A. Yes. 0&
Q. I'm going to hand you a document and ask 6
you if that's the Power of Attorney that you've made O
reference to. 0\
A. Yes,itis. @
MR. O'CONNOR: Why don't we G this
one as 2A.
(Document marke
Exhibit 2A fc r ion)

also testifying pursuant
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1 Q. The document marked as 2A is the Power of

2 Attorney that you referred to.

3 Does your name appear on that Power of

4 Attorney?

5 A No. O
6 Q. Do you know if that Power of Attorney has 0

7 been recorded anywhere in the Commonwealth of

L 4
8 Massachusetts? 0
9  A. Canyou repeat that, please. K@
10 Q. Yes. Do you know if that Power of Attorney Q
11 has been recorded anywhere in the Commonwealth of @
12 Massachusetts? 0&
13 A. Idon't know. 6
14 Q. You don't know if it's been recorded at any \O
O

15 Registry of Deeds in Massachusetts?

16 A. No, Idon't. @
17 Q. Do you know if it's been recorde: &

18 Secretary of State for the Co (thQ

19 Massachusetts?
20 A. Tdon't know. O

21 Q. Ifyoufind t has, will you be
22 willing to let us ?

L 2
23 '] y attorney know.

24 “If you look at the first page, line Item
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1 No. 5, about three-quarters of the way down, "Total
2 amount of claim at the time case filed." Do you see
3 that?

4 A Yes.

5 Q. And in the middle of the page to the right,

6 do you see an amount?

7 A. Yes, Ido.

8 Q. Inthe amount of $176,645.19; is that

9 correct?

10 A. That's correct.

11 Q. Do you know what the basis for that amount
12 is?

13 A. Yes. That's the principal balance, the

14 interest, escrow shortage, foreclosure fees and

15 costs, property inspections and uncollected late

16 charges. @

17 Q. Owed to whom? O
18  A. Owed to Bank of New York.
19 Q. The party identified editor"?

20 A. That's correch

21 Q. Now, ifyo ards the second to the

the of Claim, where it says
*

f Mortgage," do you see that?

22 last page

23

24
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1 Q. Where it says, "This assignment has an

2 effective date of May 12, 2008." Do you see that?
3 A Yes.

4 Q. Now, is the party for whom you're

S testifying today identified on that page?

6 A Yes.

7 Q. Where is it identified?

8  A. Inthe second paragraph, the Bank of New
9 York.

10 Q. Could you read it in its entirety.

11 A. "The Bank of New York as Trustee, for the

12 Benefit of the Certificateholders CWABS Inc.,

13 Asset-Backed Securities" -- I'm sorry, 6

15 (‘Assignee’) all Assignor's right, title and

14 "Certificates, Series 2007-5ES, Series 2007-5 \O
16 interest in and to the following:" @

17 Q. So that's the party that is identiﬁeo
18

that page as the "assignee"?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. And that's tth you're

21 testifying today?

22 MS. AZUERO: Objection.
*
23 answer.

24 that the party for whom you are
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1 testifying today?

2 MS. AZUERO: You can answer.

3 A Yes.

4 Q. And is that the party that's the creditor

5 on the first page of the Proof of Claim?

6 A Yes.

7 MS. AZUERO: Objection.

8  A. Yes, with the exception of the Series

9 2007-5ES.

10 Q. And what does the exception mean?

11 A. Idon't know.

12 Q. Now, if you look on that May 12 assignment,

13 the second to the last page, about two-thirds of the

14 way down you'll see the name "Kimberly Dawson"? O
15 A, Yes. 0\
16 Q. Do you know who Kimberly Dawson i ?@

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Whois she?

19  A. She'sa vice president a % America.

20 Q. Did you speak @ today -- I'm sorry,

21 strike that.

en to her in connection with
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Q. When was the last time you spoke with

Kimberly Dawson?

A. Tdon't remember.

Q. Are you prepared to testify today

concerning her authority to execute this assignment?

A. Yes.

Q. And what is it you know about her authority

to execute the assignment?

A. Tknow she has a resolution for MERS.

Q. And what does the resolution say?

A. Ttindicates that she has the ability to

act on their behalf.

Q. Does it identify her personally?

A. Not that I'm aware of. \O
Q. So how do you know that it provides her 0

with the authority to act on its behalf? @
A. Tread it; that we're able to act as O\

agent for them.

Q. When did you read it
A. Iread it today. O

Q. Is this

A. Ye

cO t you read?

*
ONNOR: Let's mark that as 2B.
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(Document marked as
Exhibit 2B for identification)

Q. The document that is marked as 2B,
"Corporate Resolution," is that the document you
were just referring to?

A. Yes.

Q. And does Kimberly Dawson's name appear
anywhere on that document?

A. No.

Q. And today was the first time you had ever
seen that document?

A. Yes

Q
A. Yes, Ido. O
Q. How do you recognize it? 0\
A. T've seen it before. @
Q. You have, okay. \
Were you present on the t shQ
signed the May 5, '09 assignn

A. No, Idid not@

Q. Do yo i tice of that May 5, '09

assignmentywas eVer sent to Patricia Starr?
*

now.

ow, if you would please turn to the last

. Do you recognize Ms. Dawson's signature? 60
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1 page of the Proof of Claim. And it's a document
2 labeled as "Assignment of Mortgage." Do you see
3 that?

4 A, Yes,Ido.

5 Q. It'sdated as of July 10 of'09. Do you

6 see that?

7 A Yes.

8 Q. And is the party on whose behalf you're

9 testifying today identified on this assignment of
10 mortgage?

11 A, Yes.

12 Q. Where is that party identified?

13 A. It'sidentified in the first paragraph, the 60

14 Bank of New York. \O
15 Q. The party identified as "assignor," is that 0
16 who you're testifying for today? @

17 A, Yes. Q
18 Q. Areyou testifying today on behalf
S

e
19 party identified as "assignee': ond

20 paragraph? \O
21 A, Yes.
22 Q. Yesyyou are€; okay.
*
23 e party identified as "assignor"

24 i to the party identified as "assignee"?
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A. No.

MS. AZUERO: I'm going to object as to the
legal structure of the Bank of New York. It's not
something that she is supposed to testify to.

MR. O'CONNOR: I don't think that was my
question.

MS. AZUERO: That's what your question is
going to.

Q. Is the party identified on the Assignment
of Mortgage dated July 10 of '09, the party
identified as the "assignor," is that the creditor
in this case?

A. Yes.

Q. Is the party identified on that assignment

as the "assignee," is that the creditor in this

case? @

A. Let me correct myself, please. T \
assignor is not the creditor, but gp
the creditor.

cC 1S
Q. Okay. Are ybEt that?

A. Yes.

Q. So the assigfior, the party identified as
L 2

on the July 10, '09 assignment is the

t's identified as the "creditor" on Page 1
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of the Proof of Claim. Is that your testimony?
A. Yes.
MS. AZUERO: That was not her testimony.
She corrected herself.
A. The assignee is identified on the Proof of
Claim.
Q. The assignee is identified. Let's make
sure we get this clear.
Page 1 of the Proof of Claim identifies a
creditor. Do you see that?
A. Yes.

Q. And the party identified as the "creditor,"

is that the same party that's identified as an 60

"assignee" on the July 10th assignment? O
A. Yes. 0\
Q. Or "assignor"? @
A. The assignee on the assignment i K

creditor, which is outlined on P Qof

of Claim. Q
Q. Allright. O

Do you kno e assignment on July 10th

of'09 was execu
*
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1 A. Itwasto correct the assignment that

2 Kimberly Dawson had executed, because there was an

3 error in how the creditor's name was outlined in the

4 assignment.

5 Q. What was the error on the Kimberly Dawson O

6 May 5th assignment? 0

7  A. Ttoutlined Series 2007-5ES.

*
8 Q. Itidentified that party as the assignee? 0
9 A Yes. &
10 Q. Sothe May 5, '09 assignment identified the Q

11 wrong assignee; is that correct?

12 A. Assignor - I'm sorry, let me correct 0&

13 myself. Assignee. 6
14 Q. Do you want to just clarify what the error \O

15 was on the May 5, '09 assignment.

16  A. Yes. On the assignee, it indicated "Seri @
17 2007-5ES," which was incorrect. (

18 Q. The assignee identified o ayQ)9

19 assignment was incorrect. Q

20  A. Correct. O

21 Q. And th¢ Ju! &gnment --July 10 of

22

that by 1dentifying the correct
*
23

24
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1 Q. And the assignee identified on the July

2 10th, '09 assignment is the creditor on Page 1 of

3 the Proof of Claim.

4 A, Correct.

5 Q. Now, you are the person who signed the July
6 10, '09 assignment; is that correct?

7 A Yes.

8 Q. And that's your signature -- if you look at

9 the last page of the Proof of Claim, the assignment
10 dated July 10, '09, that is your signature, "Renee
11 Hertzler, Vice President," correct?

12 A. Yes.

14 of'09? O
15 A. Tdon't remember. 0\

17 Do you remember where you Wer@&u

18 signed this document?

19  A. Not specifically. Q
20 Q. Doyou have
Yes.

16 Q. You don't remember.

21 A.
22 Q. Whereis office located?
L 2
23 ted at 7105 Corporate Drive in

24 exas.

13 Q. And did you sign this document on July 10th 60
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Q. And how long has that been your office?
A. TI've been in that office since February of
'07.
Q. And do you travel in connection with your
work?
A. Generally, no.
Q. But occasionally you do?
A. Yes.
Q. And do you travel so much that you wouldn't
necessarily recall where you traveled to in July of
'09?

A. Correct.

Q. Soin July of'09, as you testify here 6

reported for work during that month?

A. Well, I know I reported to the 7105 @

Corporate Drive, and I would have sign

today, do you recall any of the places that you \O

It's just I may not have signed i

Q. Oh, okay. Butifyou ou signed

it in Plano, Texas? O

A. Yes.

Q. In bull where you work?

ut you don't remember if you signed it on
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1 July 10.
2 A. Idon't remember.

3 Q. Do you remember if you signed it in July of

5 A. Tdon't remember.

6 Q. Do you remember if you signed it in June of

8 A No. 0
9 Q. No, you don't remember or No, you didn't?
10  A. Idon't remember when I signed it. Q

11 Q. But there was one assignment that was
12 signed, according to this document, on May 5th of 0&
13 '09 by Kimberly Dawson, correct? 6
14 A. Idon't know if she specifically signed it \O
O

15 that day, but this is the assignment that she

16 signed. @

17 Q. You don't know if she signed it 00

18 of'09?

19 A, Idon't Qﬁ

20 Q. And you don n@er e signed it.

21 A. Idon'tkno ‘K

22 ou now if anybody was present

23

24 don't know.
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Q. Well, do you remember if anybody was
present when you signed the document, the July 10th
assignment?

A. Tdon't know.

Do you sign a lot of these documents?
Yes.

How many do you sign in a day?

> e L

I don't know specifically in a day.
Sometimes I may not get any, and some days I might
get a lot.
Q. What's "a lot"?
A. The last I heard, roughly 7 or 8,000 per
month.
Q. Per month.
A. Yes.
Q. What's the procedure that you use to si
them? Do you sign them as a batch? D
them as they pass your desk? Qvork?

A. Most of the time I sign @ i

Every once in a wh@ ¢

there.

enerally, no.
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Q. Now, the July 10, '09 assignment contains a
jurat just below your signature. Do you see that?
A. Yes.
Q. And it appears to be Sandra Rivers. Do you
see that?
A. Yes.
Q. Do you know who Sandra Rivers is?
A. Yes.
Q. When was the last time you spoke with
Sandra Rivers?
A. T generally don't speak to her. I just
know of her.
Q. Do you know if she recognizes your
signature?

A. Yes, she does.

Q. How do you know that? @

m.

A. She works in the Document ExecQ .
And they are trained to familiarize thémselves with

our signatures. Q
Q. They're trainegd? O
A. Yes. u\
Q. Howare ained?
L 4

OW.

ell, how do you know that they're trained?
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That's what I've been told.

‘Who told you that?

The Document Execution Team.
Is there a name?

David Perez.

So as you're testifying here today, was

Sandra Rivers present when you signed the July 10,

'09 assignment?

A.

No.

Q. She was not.

And you signed it "Renee Hertzler, Vice

President." Do you see that?

A. Yes.

your name?

A. The Document Execution Team acm@

Q. Why did you put "Vice President" next to \O

that on there for us.

Q. Do they do that before yousi, iQ
after?

A. Before. O

Q. So when youssi it, your name appeared

below yougwith itle "Vice President."

4

d the entity just above your name, that
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1 is the assignor; is that correct?

2 A Yes.

3 Q. OnJuly 10th of'09, were you a vice

4 president of that entity?

5 A Yes.

6 Q. You were.

7  A. Letme correct myself. I'ma Vice

8 President of Bank of America.

9 Q. ButBank of America is not the assignor.
10 A. Correct.

11 Q. Bank of New York Mellon, formerly known as

12 the Bank of New York as Trustee, is the assignor? 0&
13 A. Correct. 6
14 Q. OnJuly 10th of'09, were you a vice O
15 president of the Bank of New York Mellon, formerlyO\
16 known as the Bank of New York as Trustee? @

\

17 A. No. Q
18 Q. Have you ever been a vicepresident of that

19 entity? Q
20 A. No. O

21 Q. But when d it, it clearly
22 identified the Bas New York Mellon, formerly
*

23 ank of New York as Trustee, as the

24 whom you were signing; is that correct?
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1 A, Correct.
2 Q. Anditclearly identified you as its vice

3 president, correct?

4 A Yes.

5 MR. O'CONNOR: This is going to be 3.
6 (Document marked as

7 Exhibit 3 for identification)

8 Q. The document that's been handed to you

9 marked as Exhibit 3, if you could just take a look
10 at that, please.

11 A. (Witness reviews document)

12 Q. Have you had a chance to look at it?

13 A. Briefly. 6

15 part of the Proof of Claim filed in this case?

16  A. Yes. @
17 Q. It'sacopy? é
18

A. Yes.

14 Q. Is that the same promissory note that is \O

19 Q. It'sdated February 2 on'the front
20 page? O

21 A. Yes,itfs. \

22 Q. Andit's in‘the amount of 152,500?

23 :

24 : d it's signed by Patricia Starr, the
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1 debtor?

2 A. Yes,itis.

3 Q. And that note is payable to Countrywide

4 Home Loans, correct?

5 A, Correct.

6 Q. It's not payable to the Bank of New York,
7 correct?

8 A. Correct.

9 Q. And the document that was marked as Exhibit
10 3, the last page, contains something that's missing
11 from the note that was attached to the Proof of

12 Claim. Do you see that?

13 A. (Witness reviews document) 6

14 Q. Tl just point you to the bottom right \O

15 corner.

16  A. Okay. @
17 Q. Do you see that? \

18 MS. AZUERO: I'm just (chat

19 this is not part of the supporti @ uments of the

20 Proof of Claim. \O

21 MR. O' understand.

22 Q. Doyou who Michele Sjolander is?
L 2

23

24 . AZUERO: Again, I'm just going to be
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clear, she would now be answering on behalf of
herself and not on behalf of the Bank of New York.
This isn't part of the documents in the 30(b)(6)
notice.

Q. Has Bank of New York Mellon ever had
possession of the original of this promissory note?

A. Tdon't know.

Q. You don't know?

A. Tdon't know.

Q. And again, do you know who Michele
Sjolander is?

A. No.

MS. AZUERO: I'm going to object. Again,
this isn't within her testimony as the Bank of e@
York deponent. She can answer for her: {

MR. O'CONNOR: I'm n Q

MS. AZUERO: I'mj

this is not within th ice.
Q. Do yor hat'the location of the

original premissory note was on July 15 0f2009?
L 2

A y understanding, Bank of New York had

A 1donit~ O
9

Q. Do you know when she signed this? 60
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1 Q. Whyis it your understanding?

2 A. That's what I was told.

3 Q. Who told you?

4 A. My attorney.

5 Q. Did anyone else tell you that? O
6 A No. 0

7 MS. AZUERO: I'm going to ask for a brief ¢

8 break. 0

9 MR. O'CONNOR: Let's take a break.

10 (Recess taken from to 2:45 to 2:53) Qﬁ

11 MR. O'CONNOR: The topics on this 30(b)(6)

12 deposition include the location and chain of 0&
13 possession and custody of the promissory note and 6

14 mortgage that are the basis of the claim in this O

15 matter. 0\

16 Is Ms. Hertzler prepared to testify @

17 concerning the location of the promissol@

18 MS. AZUERO: Yes.

19 BY MR. O'CONNOR: Q
20 Q. Onluly15, @ the original
21 promissory nofe a ed'to the Proof of Claim

22 located?
*

23 y understanding, Bank of New York had

24 . c of it.
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1 Q. Where did Bank of New York have custody?
2 A. Intheir storage facility.

3 Q. Where is that facility located?

4 A, Idon'trecall.

5 Q. You don't recall or you don't know?

6  A. Idon'trecall.

7 Q. Butyou knew at one time?

8 A. Ithink so.

9 Q. What would you need to do to refresh your
10 memory?
11 A. Go back and look at some documentation.

12 Q. Why didn't you look at that documentation

13 Dbefore you came here today? 6

14 A. 1did,butI don't remember. \O
15 Q. You did, but you don't remember. 0
16 When did you look at it? @

17 A. This morning. O
18 Q. Whereisit?
19 A, Idon't have it with m
20 Q. Whereisit? O
21 A. It'sbackat x, my attorney's
22 office.
L 2
23 torney's office. Right here in

24
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1 A, Uh-hum.

2 Q. Do you want to take a break at some point,
3 go look at it and then come back?

4 MS. AZUERO: I can have Erin fax to me the
5 location. We don't have the exact address. We do
6 have the location.

7 Q. But Ms. Hertzler was looking at documents.

8 Do the documents that you were looking at 0
9 have the address?
10 MS. AZUERO: It was an email I sent her Q

11 with the location. I didn't get the exact address.

12 Q. Do you know who owns the storage facility? 0&
13 A. No,1Idon. 6
14 Q. Do you know whether it's owned by Bank of \‘ >

15 New York?

16 A. Idon't know if they specifically own it. @

17 Q. Allright. O
18

Is it in the United States?
19 A, Yes. Q
20 Q. IsitinTexa O
21 A. Idon't beli as the state that it

22 was located it.
*

23 know who Sharon Mason is?

24 % No, that name doesn't sound familiar.
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Q. Have you ever spoken with her?

A. Tdon't believe so. IfTdid, I don't

remember.

Q. Now, you filed an affidavit in this case.

Do you recall that?

A. Yes.

MR. O'CONNOR: Would you mark that as the

next exhibit.

filed?

>

o B o B o > o > O

. Who is Shaw

(Document marked as
Exhibit 4 for identification)

Is that a copy of the affidavit that you

Yes. 6

Exhibit 4, correct? O
That's correct. 0\
And that's your signature on the bottom? @

Yes. {

Do you recall who prepa Q/it?

It was sent to us by S asterson.

He's th¢ att , bankruptcy attorney.

. Do you beliéve he prepared this?
L 4

ow. It came from his office.

id it go directly to you?
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1 A. No.
2 Q. Whodid it go to before you?
3 A. Actually, I take that back. I recall that

4 he sent it through email to myself and Sandra

5 Rivers. O
6 Q. Do you recall when? 0

7  A. Idon't remember specifically.

L 4
8 Q. And Sandra Rivers is the person who 0
9 notarized your signature on the July 10th &
10 assignment? Q

11 A Right.

12 Q. Do you know if anyone else was provided 0&

13 with this affidavit? 6
14 A. Yes. \O

15 Q. Who?
16 A. Thad forwarded it to David Perez. An I@
17 don't know if I forwarded it to anybody ®

18 Q. And who is David Perez?

19  A. He's a manager over at @ ocument
20 Execution Team. O
21 Q. Ishey \G‘e your supervisor?

22 A. No.
4

23 your supervisor?

24 Jeannette Grodsky.
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1 Q. And how long has she been your supervisor?
2 A. Since February of 2007.

3 Q. Do you know if Ms. Grodsky was provided
4 with a copy of this affidavit?

5 A. Tdon't believe so.

6 Q. And you signed this affidavit.

7  A. Correct.

8 Q. Did you read it before you signed it? 0
9 A No. K@

10 Q. Youdid not. Q

11 A. No. @

12 Q. Isthere a particular reason why you didn't 0&

13 read it? 6
14 A. Itypically don't read them because of the \O

15 volume that we sign. And we have the Power of

16 Attorney and also the Corporate Resolution. @
17 So part of the process is that we d(OK
18

read them before we sign them.

20 A. Documents. \O

21 Q. Document:

19 Q. You don't read them, ffidavits?

22 A. Correct.
*

23 uments.

24 . Correct. We have a team of people who
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1 screen them for us and prepare them for us to sign.
2 Q. Soyou're in the habit of signing documents
3 without reading them.

4 A. That's correct.

5 Q. Including this affidavit.

6 A. That's correct.

7 Q. And you see this affidavit was signed under
8 oath. Do you see that?

9 A. Yes, I do see that.

10 Q. Would you read out loud the first paragraph
11 ofthe affidavit.

12 A. "That I am the Vice President of The Bank

13 of New York Mellon, formerly known as the Bank of

14 New York as Trustee, for the Benefit of the

15 Certificateholders, CWABS, Inc., Asset-Backed

16 Certificates, Series 2007-5ES, Series 2007-5." @

17 Q. Isthat statement true?

18  A. No, butI have the Powe Q a
19 vice president. Q

20 Q. Soit's false? O

21 A. I'mavice xof Bank of America,

22 but I have the Power of Attorney --
*

23 sk you if you had a Power of

24 y. The statement in Paragraph 1 is you're a

N

C)O

O
>
A\
&
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vice president of the Bank of New York Mellon. And
I'm asking you if that statement was true.

A. No, I'm not a vice president of Bank of New
York.

Q. Have you ever been a vice president of the
Bank of New York?

A. No.

Q. So it was false when you signed it.

A. Yes.

Q. And it's always been false.

Correct.

‘Would you read out loud Paragraph 2.

> o P

"That as a vice president of The Bank of

New York Mellon, formerly known as the Bank of Ne'\o

York as Trustee, for the Benefit of the
Certificateholders CWABS, Inc., Asset-Back @
Certificates, Series 2007-5ES, Series 20

among other things, authorized

assignments of mortgages." Q
Q. And was tha ‘ when you signed

it?
A. No,d'mno ice president of the Bank of
*
Ne

as it ever been true?
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1 A. No, I've never worked for them.

2 Q. It'salways been false.

3 A. Correct.

4 Q. Andwould you read out loud Paragraph 4.
5 A. "That the jurat on the Assignment should

6 have indicated that I was a Vice-President of The

7 Bank of New York Mellon, formerly known as The Bank

8 of New York as Trustee, for the Benefit of the

9 Certificateholders, CWABS, Inc., Asset-Backed

10 Certificates, Series 2007-5ES, Series 2007-5."

11 Q. Was that statement true when you signed it?
12 . No.
13 . It's never been true?
14 . That's right.

A
Q
A
15 Q. It'salways been false.
A
Q

16

17 . Did you know why you were sigw@
18 affidavit?

19 A, Yes.

20 Q. What was yn g?
t

21 A. The as: I signed prior had a

22 mistake int, in t rat. It said that I was a
*

23 f MERS, and so the attorney was

24 an attempt to correct that problem.

. That's right. @
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Q. And in attempting to correct that problem,
the affidavit contained at least three false
statements, right?

MS. AZUERO: Objection. She can't know
what the attorney was trying to do.

A. I'mnot an attorney, and I'm not trained on
how to word these documents.

Q. But you don't need to be an attorney to
know the truth, right?

A. Right. But I have Power of Attorney --
Q. Ididn't ask you about the Power of
Attorney.
You don't need to be an attorney to know
truth from false, correct?

A. That's correct, but I don't know how to

word the documents. @

Q. You don't know how to word the

A. Well, since I had Power
Bank of New York, I don't oper way to
word the document ' f Attorney.

Q. Well, does i here in your
affidavit "Rower ttorney"?

4

d were you prevented in any way from
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inserting into this affidavit the words "Power of
Attorney"?
A. No.
MS. AZUERO: Jim, she's already told you
she didn't read --
Q. Did you know that this document was going
to be filed in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court?
A. No.
Q. Do you see at the very top of the document
where it says "United States Bankruptcy Court,
District of Massachusetts"?

A. Yes.

was going to be filed in a bankruptcy case? O
A. Ididn't look at it when I signed it -- 0\
Q. You did not look at it at all? @
A. -soldidn't know at the time. \
Q. Let me just go back to the (Q

for a minute in your July 10:

So where you si
president of the B w York Mellon, that was
false, correct?

4

d how many other documents have you

Q. Did that give you any indication that it 60
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signed in the capacity as a vice president of the
Bank of New York Mellon?
A. Tdon't know.
Q. More than one?
A. Yes--well, I don't know. I don't know
how many documents I've signed.
Q. But have you signed other documents as a
vice president for the Bank of New York Mellon?
A. Idon't know specifically.
Q. Maybe yes, maybe no?
A. Correct.

Q. Do you know if any other documents that

you've signed as a vice president of Bank of New 60

proceedings?
A. Tdon't know. @
Q. Do you know if they were si, edO\

York Mellon have been filed in public court \O

attested to under oath?
A. Tdon't know. Q
Q. Do you knore ed in any
Registries of Dee
A. Tdon't know
L 2

ONNOR: Let's take a break.

ecess taken from 3:06 to 3:13)
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BY MR. O'CONNOR:

Q. So the copy of the promissory note that
contains the stamp of Michele Sjolander, I just want
to clarify, do you know when that stamp appeared on
the original of this promissory note, ma'am?

A. Idon'.

MR. O'CONNOR: The next document is the
"Response to Debtor's Objection to the Proof of

Claim of Bank of New York." If you could mark that,

please.
(Document marked as
Exhibit 5 for identification)
MS. AZUERO: I'm going to object that it's

Bank of New York.

beyond the scope, so she can't answer on behalf of \O

MR. O'CONNOR: She can answer if s| @

MS. AZUERO: She can answer 00 f
herself.

MR. O'CONNOR: I e a copy of this.

This is a document r ibit 5. I'm going
x

to ask if you can r ellow highlighted

assignment was signed by an officer of MERS

portion of Paragraph 8.
*
g; { r admits that the jurat indicates
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1 as nominee for Countrywide Home Loans, but that this
2 was obviously a typographical error, as the

3 assignment was clearly executed by Renee Hertzler as
4 Vice President of The Bank of New York Mellon,

5 formerly known as The Bank of New York Mellon as
6 Trustee."

7 Q. What you just read is false; isn't that

8 correct, Ma'am? 0
9 MS. AZUERO: I'm going to again clarify &

10 your answer is on behalf of yourself, not the bank. Q

11 A. That's correct.

12 Q. It'sfalse. 0&

13 A. Right. 6

14 Q. And with regard to your affidavit, do you \O
O

15 know if this affidavit has ever been amended?

16 A. Idon't know if'it's been done yet, but I @
17 know that it's going to be done. O\

18 Q. How do you know that?

19 A. That's what [ was toldQ

20 Q. Who told you tl 0

21 A. My att

22 Q. Andwhichattorney is that?
23 Azuero.

24 “wDo you have an attorney representing you
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1 individually in connection with this matter?

2 A. No, not personally.

3 Q. Have you spoken -- strike that.

4 Do you want to have an attorney

5 representing you?

6 MS. AZUERO: I'm going to again be clear
7 that this is on her behalf and not on behalf of the
8 Bank of New York.

9 Q. lJustto be clear, Ms. Azuero represents the
10 defendants in the case. She doesn't represent you.
11 Do you want to have an attorney

1

N

representing your own personal interests?
13 A. Idon't know.
14 Q. Youdon't know?

15 MS. AZUERO: I'm going to object. This is

-

17 relevant. You're putting her on the spotO
18  A. DolIneed to?
19 Q. I'masking you if you @ lawyer to

20 represent you perso@

21 A. Not at this ti

22 Q. Ok

. The'Second page of your affidavit,
*
23 turn to that, please.

24 'Witness complies)

16 beyond anything in the deposition. It's not @
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1 Q. Was George McMillan present when you signed
2 that affidavit?
3 A No.

4 Q. Hewasn't. Was anyone present when you

5 signed it? O
6 A. Yes. 0

7 Q. Who?

*
8  A. Alady by the name of I believe it's Julia 0
9 Myra. &
10 Q. Isthata co-worker? Q

11 A. Yes. She works in my building.

12 Q. But George McMillan wasn't present? 0&

13 A. That is correct. 6
14 Q. Even though it says, On October 9, 2009, \O

15 you personally appeared before -- he personally

16 appeared before you. It says, "On October 9, ' @
17 personally appeared before me, the abox@ Renee

18 Hertzler..." That isn't true?
19 A. No, he wasn't there.
20 MR. O'CO @It uspend and then
21 returnto thei u‘e\!&dress of that storage
22 facility.
*

23 RO: You want to suspend the entire

24 .d ion?
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MR. O'CONNOR: I want to suspend with
regard to the 30(b)(6) of Bank of New York.

MS. AZUERO: As to just that particular --
you're going to suspend the entire deposition even
though she can answer any other question you have?

MR. O'CONNOR: I'm going to move on to the
Bank of America --

MS. AZUERO: She's only testifying on
behalf of Questions 11 and 12. We have another

witness --

MR. O'CONNOR: You have another witness?

MS. AZUERO: We do.

I want to be clear, so the only thing that
you want to know is the address. You want to ask
her about the address. Because she's here to
testify on everything else, and we're not going to
bring her back.

MR. O'CONNOR: I wanf'to ask her about the
address, and I want to ask her‘about the owner of
the address and when it Was therc'and the location
of the note and wherethe'fiote went from, from point
to point.

MSHAZUERO: She knows that it went from

Countrywide Home Loans storage to Bank of New York
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1 storage. She can testify to that. She doesn't have

2 the exact addresses, but those things are answering
3 your question. I don't think it's worth suspending

4 the deposition.

5 MR. O'CONNOR: I want to know that

6 information.

7 MS. AZUERO: We will provide it to you, and
8 you can ask her about the process, which she can

9 testify to, and that it is in the storage

10 facilities. But the exact addresses are not the

11 only answers that she can possibly give in response

12 to your questions and to suspend the deposition.

13 MR. O'CONNOR: Let's take another break. 60

14 (Discussion off the record) O
15 BY MR. O'CONNOR: 0\
16 Q. So Ms. Hertzler, you don't know wher tl@
17 original promissory note was, other thang {
18 storage facility on July 15th of '09?
19 A, Thatis correct.
20 Q. Andyou don! n@er at storage
21 facility was locate; ‘K
22 A, Well, Cali a.
*
23 you say it's California.

24 % Yeah, that's what we discussed.
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1 Q. Anddoyou know who owned that storage

2 facility?

3 A Idon't.

4 Q. Soyou don't know if Bank of New York

5 Mellon owned that facility?

6  A. That's correct.

7 Q. Andyou don't know if Bank of New York

8 Mellon leased space in that facility?

9 A, Idon'tknow.

10 Q. And you understand that that was one of the

1

—_

topics of today's deposition?
12 MS. AZUERO: I'm going to object and

1

w2

reiterate that she's provided you with the location
14 of the storage facility --

15 MR. O'CONNOR: And I will --

16 MS. AZUERO: Can please finish my
17 objection? O\

18 MR. O'CONNOR: Go al

19 MS. AZUERO: Thank§
20 I'm going to s: f@v
21 the location o%xf Bank of New York.
22 The ownership 0’ facility is irrelevant. As

23 lon, fNew York uses it to store its

rovided you with

—_

24 .d ts, whether it owns it or leases it, it's not

N

<

4
&
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1 relevant. It doesn't matter. It's not relevant to

2 the location or the possession of Bank of New York.

3 Lots of people put things where they rent them --

4 whether they own or rent them.

5 I'm going to say that she's provided you O
6 with the location of the note. And I will also say 0

7 we will provide you with additional information as

L 4
8 follow-up information, not as any sort of admission 0

9 that this isn't sufficient information as we've &
10 collected it. Q

11 MR. O'CONNOR: And I will say on the record

12 that testifying that it was in a storage facility on 0&

13 July 15th of '09 is insufficient; that I am 6

14 reserving my right to suspend and recall the \O

15 witness, because I want to know who owned the

facility. I want to know the address of the @
facility. I want to know when it arrived &
facility. I want to know for ho tg in

19 that facility.

20 MS. AZUER ta facility up

2

1

[=)}

1

-

1

foe}

o

—_

until we pulled it.
22 MR. O'CO R: Are you testifying?
L 4
23 RO: No, but you said you wanted to

24
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MR. O'CONNOR: Who pulled it?

MS. AZUERO: Bank of America pulled it, and
we provided it to you. You know that. You've seen
it. We gave it to you on February -- whatever the
date of Patricia Starr's deposition was. At
Patricia Starr's deposition I provided you the
collateral note for your inspection.

MR. O'CONNOR: Bank of America pulled it?

MS. AZUERO: Yes.

MR. O'CONNOR: So it was in Bank of
America's possession.

MS. AZUERO: No, it was not. Bank of
America has authority to pull documents on behalf of

Bank of New York.

MR. O'CONNOR: All right. Again, for the C}

record, I have additional questions. They w@

identified in the topics. And these respo@

insufficient.

So I will suspend at thi
If between now an h da
information béco Kble, I'd be more than
happy tor pen’ Ty to resolve these questions.

isfied that the deponent has been

prepared and is a suitable witness for
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1 purposes of this deposition.
2 MS. AZUERO: For purposes of all the topics

3 of'the deposition or for Topic No. 2?

4 MR. O'CONNOR: Ofthe topics that were just

5 mentioned. O
6 MS. AZUERO: That's purely Topic No. 2. 0

7 Are you objecting to any of the other ¢

8 topics? 0

9 MR. O'CONNOR: No.

10 MS. AZUERO: Do you only want additional Qﬁ

11 information on Topic No. 2?
12 MR. O'CONNOR: Again, I don't know what 0&
13 will happen and what the questions that I want to 6

15 would lead to.

14 ask would lead to. 1 don't know what the responses \O

16 You've indicated that you want to ask s
17 rehabilitative questions. I don't know WQ 're
18 going with those questions, so I imiting it

19 toNo. 2.

20 It appears to SR‘S the

21 ownership of that cility and the travel of

—_

22 the note, but I'm oing to limit myself to those
*

23 11 I'm going to say on the record,

24 the purpose of this is not for attorneys to
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make statements on the record. You want to ask some
rehabilitative questions; go right ahead.
If between now and the end of business
today we can get the information and we can resolve
this, that would be fine, but I've said all I'm
going to say on this.
MR. O'CONNOR: I would like to ask Renee a
few questions. I'd like to go off the record first,
so I can prepare myself.
(Recess taken from 3:29 to 3:36)
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MS. AZUERO:
Q. My name is Catalina Azuero. I represent
The Bank of America and Bank of New York as Trust
I'm just going to ask you a few questions about the
documents we went over today. Actually, let @
you these copies. {
I'm going to direct your atfentiofl t
Exhibit 4. This is your afﬁd@t
A. Uh-hum. O
a \1did it come through

e outside counsel's office, or

0
ou signed.

Q. Wast

Shawn Masterson,
*

ough your Document Execution Team?

originally came through Shawn

O

O

B
&2

\\}Q
\06

O
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Masterson's office, to our Document Execution Team.

Q. Do you know if they verified it before they
gave it to you?

A. Typically, they do. The normal process is
when documents come in, there's a spreadsheet that
was prepared by our procurement team, and in
conjunction with our legal department, to determine
what entities were able to sign on behalf of, as an
agent.

And the Document Execution Team, their
protocol is to review that spreadsheet to determine
if we're authorized to sign. And if we are, then
they'll prepare the documents for us to execute. If
not, they will reach out to the legal department for
validation on whether we can sign or not. And if
they're unsure, then they'll contact the investor,

Q. So that's when you're preparing de€tiiments
for a signature, such as like an assigniment.

A. Correct. That's the staidardyprotocol.

Q. Butifit's thigaffidavit, which was just

sort of -- which wasssert of a clarification, this
was sent togyou and'to the Document Execution Team.
Did\Shawn send it to both; do you know?

ANt was sent to myself and Sandra Rivers.
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Q. So it was sent directly to you -- was the
reason that it was also sent to Sandra Rivers was
because there was an affidavit for her as well?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you told why you were having to sign
this?

A. Yes. It was because a correction needed to
take place.

Q. And you trusted the attorney to sign -- or

to word the document however that he saw fit?
A. Absolutely.
Q. Did you think that when you were signing

it, that there would be any misrepresentations in

it? O
A. No, Idid not. C}

Q. And was there any strange circumstan @
around the day that you signed it? {
agd
in to sign this document. Q
Q. Sodid you do 1 course of

your workda;

A. Yes. I was on vacation,

A. No,this waS"an abnormal document for me to

4
sign,

o your knowledge, when Shawn sent it to
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you, this didn't go through the normal process of
verification, because it wasn't the sort of document
that you would need to verify, like, Yes, I have

authority; No, I don't have authority.

A. That's correct. O
Q. I'm going to go back to Exhibit 2. It'sa 0
Proof of Claim. ¢
And if you could go to the last page. This 0
is the Assignment of Mortgage. When this would come

in, who would receive it, typically? Qﬁ

A. Typically, this would go directly to the

Document Execution Team. 0&
Q. And the Document Execution Team, did they 6

keep track of entities for which they have a Power O

of Attorney? 0\
A. Yes, there's that spreadsheet that I @

mentioned. &

Q. And do you rely upon thém toverify all the

kind of assertions within the ments that
you sign? O

A. Yes, a@

Q. Andywhen signed this as vice

L 2
presi - are a vice president of Bank of

; is that correct?
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A. That's correct.

Q. And when you signed it, that was your
understanding; that you were signing it as vice
president of Bank of America?

A. That is correct. O

Q. Notwithstanding the fact that it says 0

something otherwise?

L 4
A. That's correct. 0
Q. And when you signed this, you were &
comfortable with the idea that you had the power to Q
sign on behalf of the Bank of New York because you @

had the Power of Attorney? 0&

A. That's correct. 6
MR. O'CONNOR: I'm going to object to the \O

form of the question.

Q. And you were comfortable that -- let @
back, then. &
Did this assignment come in, thréugh the

normal screening process at erica?

A. Yes. O

Q. So when youssi it, to your knowledge,

it had beenyscree! y the Document Execution Team?
L 2

ut the Document Execution Team does
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1 occasionally make mistakes?

2 A. It'spossible.

3 Q. Soeven though there is an indication here
4 that, for instance, there's a series number that's

5 incorrect, that those kind of accidents -- mistakes
6 do happen?

7 A Yes.

8 Q. Butthe power that you have to sign on

9 behalf of Bank of New York still exists?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And then my final question has to do with
12 the notarization process. Are you familiar with it?
13 A Yes.

14 Q. Do the notaries -- strike that.

15 Are the notaries familiar with the vice

16 presidents of Bank of America's signatures? @

17 A, Yes.
18 Q. Are they familiar with y n:

ally?

19 A, Yes. 9"

20 Q. Are they famili l ith the vice
ica?

21 presidents of

23 aware of when they are signing

24 . d ts -- or that they are signing documents?
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1 A Yes.
2 Q. Does Bank of America have a system in place
3 where the notaries sign -- notarize documents for

4 which they're familiar with the people who sign

5 them?
6 A Yes.
7 MS. AZUERO: I think those are all my

8 questions.

9 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

10 BY MR. O'CONNOR:

11 Q. Ms. Azuero just asked you a question about

12 the system that the notaries have concerning

13 familiarity with the signatures? 6

14 A, Yes. \O
15 Q. How is it that you had knowledge of that? 0
16 Have you seen that system? @

17 A. No. Personally, no.

18 Q. Sohow is it that you ha Qf

19 that?

20 A. Just from talki @D ment Execution
21 Team manageme: %

22 Q. Andywho in‘the Document Execution Team
23 ma a:told you this?

24 “David Perez.
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Anyone else?
No.
‘When did he tell you this?

I don't remember.

. Was it recently?

Maybe a month or two ago.

And was there a particular reason that that

8 topic arose?

9 A

Yes. Ijust wanted to get a better

10 understanding of the process.

1 Q.

12 A

13 Q. And do you receive a paycheck from Bank of

And why was that?

For my deposition.

14 America?

15 Al

16 Q.

Yes.

Do you get it in a paper form or is it @

17 electronic? O
18

A.

19 Q.
20 stub?
21 A.

It's electronic.

Do you get any kind o @

We getfan x notification where we

22 can go andgdook online.

23

24

*
identify who is paying the

k?
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You know, I don't recall. I don't look at

Do you receive a W-2?
Yes.

And do you read the W-2?
Briefly.

Have you ever received a paycheck or a W-2

8 from the Bank of New York?

9 A

No.

10 Q. Butyou receive a paycheck and a W-2 from

11 the Bank of America?

12 A. That's correct.

13 Q. You testified that the affidavit -- I

14 Dbelieve you testified -- or you were asked if it was

15 an abnormal document to sign. Do you recall that?
17 Q. What do you mean by "abnormalQ&
18  A. Itdidn't go through the n annels,
19 through the Document Exec @ c

20 something that I W

21 to the office ta co

16 A. Yes.

sign it, so that the

22 attorney could re it.

23

24 . in

L 4
s an unusual event to have to go

office?
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A. That's correct.

Q. And despite the fact that it was an unusual
event, you still chose not to read it very closely?

A. That's correct.

MR. O'CONNOR: Nothing further, subject to
my earlier comments.

MS. AZUERO: And to be clear, we will not
be bringing Renee back to the extent Mr. O'Connor
has questions. As we've stated, we have asked him

to finish the questioning here today.
(Whereupon, the deposition was

suspended at 3:45 p.m.)

\OQ
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I, RENEE D. HERTZLER, do hereby certify that I

have read the foregoing transcript of my testimony,

and further certify that said transcript

(with/without) suggested corrections is a true and

accurate record of said testimony.

Dated at

2010.

, this day of R

k %k %k kK

On this day of

appeared

me through satisfactory evident

which was

whose name is sign

Not:

ission expires:

me, the undersigned Notary Public, persona@

,2010, bef@\

nd proved to
ation,

, to be the person




65

1 COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS)

2 SUFFOLK, SS. )

3 I, Jane M. Williamson, CRR and Notary Public in

4 and for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby

5 certify that there came before me on the 19th day of O
6 February, 2010, at 2:08 p.m., the person hereinbefore 0

7 named, who was by me duly sworn to testify to the

L 4
8 truth and nothing but the truth of her knowledge 0
10 in this cause; that she was thereupon examined upon Q&

9 touching and concerning the matters in controversy

—_

11 her oath, and her examination reduced to typewriting

12 under my direction; and that the deposition is a 0&

13 true record of the testimony given by the witness. 6

14 I further certify that I am neither attorney or \O

15 counsel for, nor related to or employed by, any

16 attorney or counsel employed by the parties h{@

17 or financially interested in the action.

18  In witness whereof, I have her:Qland
19 and affixed my notarial seal Qh y of March,
20 2010. O

21 \

22

23 Not;

24 ,.C sion expires 2/28/2014
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